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Honorary Members 
MR. D. STEWART 

On September lith, 1965 at Gortin Glen Forest, after the 
Northern Ireland Forestry Competitions, Mr. David Stewart was 
made an honorary member of the Society. 

Although he may not be known to many foresters in the south, it 
can be said that Mr. Stewart devoted a long and active lifetime to 
forestry in Ireland and that it benefited in a very positive way from 
his · early activities and then in a widespread and very enduring way 
from his tenacity and administrative ability when he reached high rank 
later in life. 

Mr. Stewart who lives at Hillsborough, Co. Down was born in 
1885 at Argyle where his father was a forester on the Stonefield 
Estate. As a boy he worked as a forest trainee and later as an 
apprentice at the Edinburgh Botanic Gardens and as a student at 
the East of Scotland Agricultural College. In 1908 he came to work 
at the Lisduff Estate and became head forester there. He left in 
1911 to join the State Forest Service, the then Department of 
Agriculture and Technical Instruction, and worked for a short time 
there before transferring to Baunreagh- now Mountrath Forest-in 
1911, as Forester in charge. There he remained until 1920 where he 
trained many of the now older Foresters. He is remembered as a 
strict but fair master. 

In 1920 he was appointed District Officer by the B.F.C. at 
Baronscourt and transferred as Inspector to the Ministry of Agriculture 
in Northern Ireland in 1922. 

In 1927 he was moved to Belfast to organise the setting up of a 
technical headquarters for the first time and to institute an Advisory 
and Grants system for the private estates. Here he acted as the 
Senior Inspector in charge of operations in Northern Ireland and 
was responsible for Timber Control by the British Board of Trade 
during the last war. He was honoured an imperial award for 
these services. After nearly 40 y~ars in the service of forestry in 
Ireland he retired in 1950 at the age of 65. 

Since then he has been honoured by the Royal Scottish Forestry 
Society with honorary membership and has been awarded a Gold 
Medal by the Royal Forestry Society of England, Wales and Northern 
Ireland. Apart from his early contribution to Forestry in the 
south, Mr. Stewart, starting with 25 men and only 400 acres planted 
at Ballykelly, virtually built up the Northern Ireland Forestry Service 
as it exists to-day. When he retired in 1950 there was a staff 
of five Inspectors, 30 Foresters and 600 men with an acreage of 25,000. 
Those who experienced the early work of forestry in the south 
will readily appreciate how, with such a small staff, the force of the 
individual must have influenced the planting of each acre of the 
annual planting of about 100 acres as it was in those days. 
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His greatest achievement was the establishment of a forestry 
tradition, the training of personnel with high skills and principles 
leaving behind him a hard-working conscientious and efficient service. 

A determined man o.f purpose he fought many battles for 
forestry with administration and politicians. Brought up in a tough 
period of forestry he asked much of those who served but in his 
own turn worked hard and was respected as a man with integrity 
beyond reproach. 

He can truly be said to have made a great contribution to. forestry 
and deserves well the honour of honorary membership which we 
have bestowed upon him. 

MR. T. DONOVAN 

At the 24th Annual General Meeting, the Society had great 
pleasur~ in conferring on Mr. Timothy Donovan, honorary membership 
of the Society. He is the 6th honorary member and holds the dis­
tinction of being, with Mr. M. O'Beirne, the only Irishman, bo.rn 
and bred, to have been given this honour. 

Born in Clonakilty, Co. Cork in 1882, it was no.t until 1906 that 
he entered the Forestry School at Avondale. He remained there for 
3 years where he received his basic training in forestry which was 
to stand him in good stead during his long and active career. 

His initial posting was to Camolin, Co. Wexford, one of 
the first state forests in Ireland. Following a short period there, 
he tr.ansferred to Ballykelly, Co. Derry, where he took over 200 
acres of land which was to prove to be the nucleus of the North's 
afforestation programme. During his stay at Ballykelly, he received 
the princely sum of 3/ 6 for a 24 hour day, no allowance being 
given for accommodation ,as had been the case at Camolin. Other 
forests of which he had charge during the second decade of the 
20th century were Augher, Co. Tyrone and Ballyhoura, Co. Cork. 
In 1920 he was appointed District Officer at Ballygar. In this period 
he advised on private planting in the West. An example of his 
judgment was the Sitka spruce planted at Ballinahinch, Co. Galway. 
These grew to a height of 110 ft. before being blown. Due to the 
unstable political situation in Ireland in the early 1920's the British 
Government abolished the post of District Officer for the West. 
Mr. O'Donovan was offered the post of forester -in-charge of Ballygar 
forest which he accepted. He remained there for 13 years and the 
present day forest is a symbol of his skill while in charge. 

From forester-in-charge at Ballygar he moved, on appointment to 
District Inspector in 1934, to the post of Special Acquisition and Survey 
Officer in the Gaeltacht. While in this post he carried out the first 
inspection of Nephin Beg, now one of the largest forests in the 
West. 

In 1942 along with 30 other men dedicated to the spread of 
the knowledge of forestry in all its aspects he founded the Society 


